GROOMING TALENT FOR INDUSTRY

EBANT RRR

Over the past 20 years, the Hong Kong Institute of
Accredited Accounting Technicians (HKIAAT) has been
dedicated to nurturing Accredited Accounting Technicians
(AATs) to serve various industries in Hong Kong. AATs
are dynamic and professional, and play a vital role in

maintaining and processing the financial information
of every organization in Hong Kong. Today, AATs have
become an indispensable part of the business, the
foundation on which accounting rests. Their contributions
towards the sustained development of Hong Kong are

widely recognized in the business community.
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MISSION =E

The Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited
(HKIAAT) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the only statutory licensing body of
accountants in Hong Kong). Incorporated in 1988, HKIAAT is the only
local organization that is committed to the advancement of Accredited
Accounting Technicians (AATs).

Its principal activities are the award of the “Accredited Accounting
Technician” qualification through conducting professional examinations,
offering premier member and student services, accreditation of relevant
sub-degree qualifications and promotion of the study of accountancy among
sub-degree holders and secondary school students.
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT € E#i&

Last year was immensely challenging as the financial crisis swept across the
globe. However, it also provided a unigue opportunity for us to demonstrate
to our stakeholders the value of our qualification and the quality of the
services we offer. As President, it is my pleasure to report to members and
stakeholders that we have had a fruitful year and have made bold strides
towards fulfilling our mission.

The year 2008/09 was lightened by a series of celebratory activities
commemorating our 20th year of incorporation. Thanks to the dedicated
support of our stakeholders over the past two decades, we have grown
into the reputable professional accountancy body that we are today and the
AAT qualification has become a popular route for Hong Kong's sub-degree
holders who intend to launch their careers in accountancy.

The major achievement realized during this year was the successful launch
of the new qualification framework (NQF). The vision of this new framework
is to establish HKIAAT membership as a valid and valued attainment in its
own right. We have dedicated much effort in promoting the NQF to our
stakeholders. In return, the AAT qualification under the NQF has gained us
a wider recognition. Continuous recognition has been obtained from the
Civil Service Bureau and a number of local and overseas universities. What's
more, we have signed our second reciprocal membership agreement — this
one with the Association of Accounting Technicians, Australia. | can assure
you that we will continue to seek further recognition from both local and
overseas stakeholders.

In terms of developing our strategic partnership, we have been working
closely with the Employees Retraining Board to organize the “certificate
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in HKIAAT certified accounts clerk” training for clerical personnel looking
for new opportunities to upgrade their accounting skills. As the younger
generation is our future and the source of new members, we also work
closely with the Education Bureau on the applied learning course “practical
accounting for SMEs” to sow the seeds of interest in accounting careers.
With the help of these strategic partners, we hope that more and more
people will develop an interest in accounting.

Since we first started running our examinations in 1989, more than 9,000
graduates have successfully completed the AAT examination. During the
reporting year, the total number of new students registered for the AAT
examination and professional bridging examination (PBE) has risen by
12 percent, so our student population stands at around 5,800. We have
now 545 PBE graduates who are eligible to study the CPA Qualification
Programme. By the end of June 2009, our membership base was over
1,600.

Our 20 years of successful growth will mean nothing if we cannot rise
to the challenges of tomorrow. | feel assured of the HKIAAT's continued
success, with my confidence based on the collective wisdom of the board,
committee, and with the full support of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs, as
well as the commitment and hard work of the management. In particular,
| will continue to count on the immediate past president, Mr. Doug Oxley,
and my fellow board members as well as the management, led by the
institute secretary, Ms. Winnie Cheung, to carry out the HKIAAT's mission
and plans, and to maintain the HKIAAT's well-deserved status as a reputable
accountancy body in Hong Kong. | would like to thank everyone from the
bottom of my heart for the wonderful privilege of being your president
during the year.

Johnson Kong
20 October 2009
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In line with the new governance policy of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs,
which enables the Institute to operate as a management-led organization,
the HKIAAT has changed its organizational structure.

The HKIAAT board

The board, comprising Certified Public Accountants, professors and lecturers
of educational institutions, focuses mainly on the strategic development of
the HKIAAT.

Committee and advisory group

The AAT qualifying process and examination matters are overseen by the
examinations and accreditation committee. Advisory groups are formed on a
need basis to provide inputs to the management.

The management

The management is responsible for developing and implementing policies
and initiatives to achieve the HKIAAT's vision and strategic objectives, and
managing day-to-day operations.
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The board and the management 2£& R EEE

From left to right:

Front row:

Stella Cho (Vice-president), Johnson Kong (President), Winnie C W Cheung (Institute secretary),
Doug Oxley (Immediate past president), Andy Li (Vice-president)

Back row:
Bo Bo Man, Jonathan Ng (Director), Thomas Y T Wong, Georgina Chan (Executive director), Lindy Yau, Chan Cheuk Hay
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Organizational structure 41452248

Executive director
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HKIAAT board
HEEg

Institute secretary
BENER

Examinations and

accreditation committee Management Director Assistant director
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Promotion and
day-to-day operations
EEEERAEEE

Examinations and
accreditation teams
EHEFEE

1 manager, 1 manager,

1 assistant manager,
3 administrative officers,
3 administrative assistants

and 1 office assistant assistants
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1 assistant manager,
2 administrative officers
and 4 administrative
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Past presidents

FEEgk

1988-1990 Robert Gaff = 5
1990-1992 Valiant K P Cheung IREAR
1992-1995 William W H Chan PR 4
1995-1998 Albert K W Wong =EE
1998-2001 Joseph Y K Yau EEE
2001-2003 George KW Ho BIEES
2003-2005 Dennis C O Chung EET
2005-2008 Doug Oxley R

Board members

BEgKE

Johnson Kong (President) TER (8FK)
Stella Cho (Vice-president) THEME RlgR)
Andy Li (Vice-president) FER BlEgR)
Doug Oxley (Immediate past president) BE (LEgR)
Chan Cheuk Hay PREE

Thomas Y T Wong BEHE

Lindy Yau R EREE
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Examinations and accreditation committee members

Doug Oxley (Chairman) BRI (EFF)
Johnson Kong (Deputy chairman) TER (BIER)
Sebastian Antonio Bombaci

Butt Yiu Yu 2T
Terence Cheung REE

John Ko =E Rk

Andy Li =
Terence Wan IR

Lindy Yau EREREE

Francis Yue REIR
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The Hong Kong Association of
Accounting Technicians (The
Association) was formed on

23 August 1988. The inauguration of the accounting

BEEXETERE (Hg) B technician examination (ATE) The plrofe'ssional k?ridging
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The computerized accounts

first tailor-made local examination oo
examination was launched.

structure for Hong Kong's

meet the growing needs of AATs
for further advancement in the

accounting technicians. BT REREH - accounting profession and as
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an alternative vocational route

to become a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA).
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The Association introduced the
book-keeping and accounts
examination.
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A new ATE syllabus was
implemented to meet the
surging demand for information
technology applications in
accounting and other market

o o needs.
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The inauguration of the HKAAT
membership scheme for ATE

graduates

REXETFEEXLHLEHEER
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The first accounting case
competition was co-organized

by the Association, the then
Education and Manpower Bureau
and Hong Kong Association for
Business Education.
BEEAHBHERMEBNER
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A reciprocal membership agreement was -] [ ]
signed with the UKAAT.
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The Association was (and to date still
is) the only professional body invited
by the Education Bureau to offer the
applied learning course “practical
accounting for SMEs" for senior
secondary school students.
HERAEE (TRYRE—) BHE
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The new qualification framework for the Hong Kong Institute of
Accredited Accounting Technicians (NQF) was introduced to establish
HKIAAT membership as a valid and valued attainment in its own right
and to further assist members in their future career development by
meeting the accounting profession’s manpower demands. The final NQF
paper was published after a comprehensive review by academia and
industry practitioners and the conducting of a public consultation.
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The Association was renamed the Hong
Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting
Technicians Limited (HKIAAT) and rebranded
to further enhance its professional image.
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September 98 November 118

The annual dinner cum 20th anniversary celebration
dinner was held. Mr. Benjamin Tang, JP, Director
of audit, officiated as the guest of honour at the
event.
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A press conference was held to announce
the details of the NQF. A series of new
study texts specially geared to the NQF
syllabus was launched.
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December 12H

The HKIAAT and the Employees Retraining Board
combined forces to tailor-make the “certificate in
HKIAAT certified accounts clerk” training course

for people who wish to be retrained to take up

OCtO be r 1 O ﬁ accounting clerical jobs, with financial assistance.
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The oral presentation of the popular
accounting and business management

The 2008 prize presentation ceremony
was held with the Hon. Paul Chan, MH,
JP, Legislative councillor (accountancy),
as the guest of honour.
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The HKIAAT and the Education Bureau
co-organized a seminar to provide the
secondary school teachers of business,
accounting and financial studies with real
case materials for teaching. More than
230 teachers attended the seminar.

case competition — secondary school
group was held, with more than 130 teams
submitting written reports.
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The oral presentation of accounting and
business management case competition
— tertiary institute group took place with
great success, attended by roughly 150
participants.
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The HKIAAT participated in the
Education and Careers Expo 2009
which welcomed over 190,000 visitors.
BRI BEHHE L IN2009F HE KB
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The first AAT examination and PBE
under NQF were held.
MERERTEARTVBEHESE
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Two briefing sessions were organized to
help secondary school teachers find out
more about the applied learning course
“practical accounting for SMEs".
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Samuel Leung - 2007 graduate
Senior account supervisor of a multinational financial
printing company

The AAT qualification is not only recognized by employers, it also
boosts the holder's confidence in their capabilities. Even though
Samuel had many opportunities for promotion in the early stages
of his career, he did not dare to take them. After he completed
all the AAT examinations, Samuel felt a sense of self-confidence
which translated into the quality of his work. This was soon

Capitalizing on the new qualification framework (NQF)

The restructured and upgraded AAT training programme under the NQF
introduces new skill-sets, and builds in elements of ethics and integrity for
our graduates and members. To pave the way for smooth implementation,
we have:

e |launched a series of study texts for the AAT examination and PBE;

published a full set of pilot papers;

e conducted re-accreditation exercises for our 63 accredited programmes; and

e developed a candidate learning pack and pilot paper for professional
assessment.

AAT qualification wins recognition

The AAT qualification under the NQF has gained the recognition of the
Civil Service Bureau for appointments in five government departments. It
has also received advanced standing from a number of local and overseas
bachelor degree programmes. AATs are also eligible for direct entry into the
bachelor of professional accounting with honours, a new collaborative top-
up degree programme of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs and the Open
University of Hong Kong.

noticed by his manager, and Samuel was promoted to the position
of senior account supervisor to oversee the accounting division of a
financial printing company.

In the printing industry, cost analysis needs to be extremely accurate
as this bears a direct impact on the company’s pricing strategy and
setting of sales targets.
loss. For this reason, | am very aware of the significance of my role as
well as the importance of a solid accounting knowledge acquired from
the AAT qualification,” Samuel says.

“An error on my part can translate into a big
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Growing brand value

We have dedicated a great deal of effort into getting the public to achieve
a greater understanding of the roles of AATs and their contributions toward
the sustainable development of Hong Kong and its business. Leveraging
on the NQF and our 20" anniversary, we rolled out a series of marketing
initiatives:

* A supplement featuring the important milestones and major developments
of the HKIAAT in the past 20 years was published in two newspapers.

e Two brand awareness campaigns with the theme “AAT: The Indispensable
Element”, ran in January and June 2009, with media coverage featuring
AAT success stories and employers’ testimonials.

* \We took part in three large-scale expositions: the Job Market Education
Expo and The Hong Kong International Education Expo in summer
2008 and the Education and Careers Expo in February 2009. Our staff
also delivered more than 110 talks and organized 17 roving exhibitions,
reaching more than 7,000 students.

REE M miEEE

BA—EBRNBELREMT ERAMBETEHERE
RAWEEZEROIERMER - BLA ¥ EERBMG
SR TEF  RARRT —RIMGHEELR

s EMOBRELRAFTERT  OEBEEBE
“HFRNERRREE NS T EERKR -

* DRIN —ZETNF—AFNAREMRIA [RBA8
BEFE : TAHRN—B | AEENREHEE
B o WA MBURER A M H ST BORNEE
MELE S ABHXETIFHN BT ALE -

s HM2ET—EALBES 81 —TT/\FE
RERORBESNASBESGNEERRHER
URZEZNF-ANBERBEEES - RMN
BTHEHT110Z5BE - X8RT T17ER
% [[7,0002 2 2L EER AR HETBER -



Daisy Wong - 2007 graduate
Regional controller of a logistics company

From a humble start as an accounts clerk to becoming management
in a regional company, Daisy continues to enhance her accounting
capability through life-long learning. “I did extensive research and
found that the AAT qualification was the best choice because of its
wide recognition and its association with the Hong Kong Institute of
CPAs,” Daisy says.

Enhancing membership services

Our members and students are important to us and to maintain close ties
with them, we have:

e launched a monthly e-newsletter, AAT Express, in July 2008, to keep our
members and students abreast of our latest developments; and

e revamped our official journal, T/Dialogue, providing more in-depth content
in areas that interest our members and students, together with details of
the latest events in the accounting profession.

Partnership with Employees Retraining Board (ERB)

The joint HKIAAT and ERB “certificate in HKIAAT certified accounts clerk
(CAC)" training course was launched in December 2008. It is a placement-
tied programme and aims at enhancing the employability of individuals who
need financial assistance to take up training in basic accounting skills. By
end of June 2009, 87 students had successfully completed the course and
received a CAC certificate.

STRIVING FOR EXCELLENCE e B /JiBskE il

Cost control and revenue management are particularly
important in the logistics industry. The AAT qualification
equipped Daisy with the knowledge of how to manage
accounting information systems efficiently. With her assistance
in managing accounting operations, Daisy’s boss can devote
more time to developing strategies for maximizing productivity.
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Winnie Chan [ FE

Graduate of “certificate in HKIAAT CAC” training course, 2009
2009% [HKIAATZ A Bt X BB E | SR EEXES

After being a salesperson for seven years, Winnie decided to move into the
accounting profession in 2008. To increase her employability, she signed
up for the “certificate in HKIAAT CAC” training course. “The course has
provided me with good basic accounting training and, most importantly,
the certificate issued by the HKIAAT increases the confidence of potential
employers,” says Winnie. The ease with which she found a good job soon
after completion of the programme was the most exciting reward for
Winnie.
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Grooming the younger generation

To sustain the healthy development of Hong Kong's accounting profession
and to meet the surging demand for accountancy services, bringing in young
people is important. The HKIAAT is dedicated to the younger generation and
connects to them by:

publishing an e-newsletter, Prospective AAT e-Flash, for over 5,000
Prospective AAT Club members, who are secondary and tertiary students.
Since November 2008, this e-newsletter has helped them understand the
accounting profession as they make their career choices;

refining the format of the accounting and business management case
competition to offer an enriched learning experience for more than 1,000
tertiary and secondary students; and

training secondary school students on the basic knowledge and skills in
accounting through the applied learning course “practical accounting for
SMEs".

Closer ties with academia

To promote supportive relationships with our accredited programme
providers, we introduced an AAT advisor scheme and launched the HKIAAT
teachers’ conference. Both initiatives have received whole-hearted support
from academia, who consider them great networking opportunities.
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Athena Wong - 2007 graduate
Accounting officer of a serviced
apartment group

Ensuring money flows in smoothly at the month-
end is vital for a company which manages
serviced apartments. As a mid-level accounting
professional, Athena needs to prepare a full set
of financial statements, such as the statement
of comprehensive income and the statement
of financial position monthly for her employer's

review. In addition, Athena has to liaise with
different external parties including tenants,
developers and government departments
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every day. “The subjects covered in the AAT
qualification are all highly relevant to my work.
Business communication is the most significant. |
now feel much more confident when dealing with
various parties,” she says.

“The AAT qualification is helpful not just in terms
of the knowledge and skills | have gained. The
increase of trust from colleagues and supervisors
is far more important to me than short-term salary
rises or promotions. The AAT qualification is a
door opener to a stable and secure career. ”

F£EF (Athena) - —EZELFEXEE
R LNEEFEL A 5T E T

HR-—REERBAQXBNARRHR » BREARESTRRAREE
EEN - ER—BHEETAL > AthenaEEZ AGHEEHBH/E
PlanzmE KSR BT R - AEEEEZEMN o B+ AthenaB X
EEATUNMEALHE - BFES - BERBNBUTEM o #3 :
[RAHKETEERMRENN EERERNTHEERRE - EPLU
BEEALHEE BEERETRALEBER BEEEF - J

WREE . [RUTMBEEAEERTESHETESNRANEE  ES

FEENEEHREMEME  BERR - ELEPNFRAABREREE -
Hit - BUHBETEEERARLBERANRE - |

Lo Chi Wah EXZ

2008% - 10/EEFBERE [FILEEREME ] BE

through these two different learning methods complement each ot
| never feel bored,” Chi Wah says.

Student of ApL course “practical accounting for SMEs”, 2008-10 cohort

By using accounting software, Chi Wah finds that he can understand different
accounting theories more effectively, as these theories might otherwise be
too abstract to be explained with a pen-and-paper calculation. “l am also
taking the principles of accounts subject at school. The knowledge imparted

her and so

TEEFFARKAMEXREE G - HHBRHR - U - (BEBEH

DB WETR BB R TR R B+ [BEBROEEARS
BREFA - BEEHETRANEE % BB ARTABT - SR

TERFEE 2R - |



MEMBER AND STUDENT STATISTICS & E K& iz

]

<N

Liz Lee - 2006 graduate
Senior accountant Il in a medium-sized CPA firm

Liz Lee, an e-commerce graduate, turned into an accounting professional through
the AAT qualification. By following the well-organized AAT syllabus, Liz navigated
her way through all major accounting areas in one year. She is now responsible

for conducting internal control reviews for clients and providing consultancy on

compliance issues at a medium-sized CPA firm.

Working in an accounting firm, the core
competencies required include not only technical

Student statistics 24 gzt E& F

As at 30 June 2009, total number of AAT examination and PBE students amounted to 4,930 and 909 respectively.
BHE-ZZAFRAA=TH  UHSHAEZAREEEREAREAZBD R 24,930 AK09A -
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MEMBER AND STUDENT STATISTICS o @ 8 & &4 Giat &kt 20 . 21

knowledge, but also communication skills.  ZSEEHF (Liz) - —EENFEEE

“After attaining the AAT qualification, | B & = B B 75 B S AR & 5TER

became more confident when discussing

matters with clients and colleagues,” Lz2—REFHEEEL  mERAUNESTEEKERRA—BSEEAL - EBBEZR
says Liz. Confidence, together with her ~ MHMBETBER > SLZE—F2ARSBRNEHERATFERNES - BE - #E—X
sound communication skills gained from HEEMEEIE  AFREFETRBER  UAREBFERNEE LRHZBARE
AAT studies, leaves Liz's clients with a
good impression of her professionalism,
and reflects well on her firm.

EEFMEBAATE  MABHRETERNREARMNAR - BEROHURIFEEN -
Liz# : [BERTMEEHEEREK  RETFARSI®EEN HREEFARF | BF
mERRTMBEET EERIRERYRIFBBRI - ELzNEFHEERRFE T RALED
8 WA TENEBAABERRED

Member statistics & B #t&t & £t

Total number of members as at 30 June 2009 is 1,682.
BE_TZNFRA=1H GEHBAHA1682A °

Membership category & S5 Gender distribution 14 315>

Associate
28

56%

Female &
67%



MEMBER AND STUDENT STATISTICS o & 8 RS 4EGETE R

Oscar Lee - 1989 graduate
Lecturer in an educational institution

Education has long been admired as a great career to be in because
knowledge transfer is the fundamental driving force behind an economy’s
development. That is the reason why pioneer AAT graduate, Oscar Lee,
decided to move into the education field after working as an accountant in a
CPA firm for many years. The AAT qualification solidified his knowledge and
helped him land a good job quickly.

Member statistics & B £ist &
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The AAT-turned-lecturer has trained students ZFEkH (Oscar) - —NNANFEXE

taking the AAT examination for years, and L4117

therefore knows better than most about the

BE-HRARAZENEE  RAARERERESENRE D - FEAEMER
 BRAE MUK ENEERBEEENOscar ' RERBREZFHNEHAES

has gone through. “As the business world gy T4k . B SHER - RUMHAH EEHRE T MR - LR RS
has changed over the past 20 years, so has IR 2 — BB TE o

metamorphoses which the AAT qualification

the examination syllabus of AAT and the

expectations of candidates,” he explains. %ﬁl«j&l{: E{jﬁaiﬁ;ﬁlﬂtﬁéﬁééﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ’g%ﬁﬁ; —‘Eﬂ(i‘)i‘%%ﬂl%‘ii L]
fFZER AT M BEETTEER - Bt - R AU EETEERFTEREE T #
. o R 1B . [EBE-TFE  FELETEEL MUBESTENZEREEN
changed. AATs are still the indispensable BAWHE O THRE A - ATRBEHENREARREE - BANK
element of Hong Kong's businesses.” SRR R A D — 25 o |

“However, the high quality of AATs has never

Employment category #t 2 38 51l Job category B i 51

CPA firm
EQEIESCE
17%

Others HE*

209 Supervisor

ESy
39%

Others HE*
21% Government
BUF

1%

Non-governmental
organization

FEBUR S
0,
Industry T2 2% Magager
8% s
4%
Commercial
[GES
0y
51% 35%
* “Others” - including full-time students and fresh graduates * “Others” - including top management, full-time students and fresh graduates

"HE - REERBEEREEREE "HE" - RESREREE  2BRBEREEREE



REPORT OF THE BOARD BE 24

The Board of Directors (“Board members”) has pleasure in submitting its report and the audited financial statements of Hong
Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited (“HKIAAT") and its subsidiary (“the Group” ) for the year ended 30
June 2009.

BEg ("BEEFOMAREFEMBEHHEERAT ("He") REKHB®RE ("SE") BE20095F6 A30R L FEHME REEX
BATEERE o

Principal activities £ E£¥#

HKIAAT, being a company limited by guarantee, was incorporated in August 1988 under the auspices of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ( “the Institute” ). The Group’s principal activities are the award of the “Accredited Accounting
Technician” qualification through conducting professional examinations, offering of premier member and student services,
accreditation of relevant sub-degree qualifications and promotion of the study of accountancy among sub-degree holders and
secondary school students.

HERN1988FSAET EGIMAE (” ) R TEMRINERERAT - RENI2XBRBEBEREEZHARK
[RAMBETE] B RUEENSERBLRS - FEHRIFERUERRIESIFEMA L RPEENEGHE -

A
NE

Financial statements B4 %R &
The state of affairs of the Group and HKIAAT at 30 June 2009 are set out in the statements of financial position on page 28.

The results of the Group and HKIAAT for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 are set out in the statements of comprehensive
income on page 29.

7R2009F6 A30 B I EM BRI N FE28 B IR EKF -
HZE2000F6 A30H LB FEEERIBHEMEEHNFE20BMEEIKEERS -

Fixed assets BEIE & &
Particulars of changes in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 4 to the financial statements on page 41.

Transfer to general fund BIRELEE S

Surplus for the year of HK$1,499,000 (2008: deficit of HK$284,000) has been grouped under general fund. Other movements in
members’ equity are set out in the statements of changes in members’ equity on page 30.

1,499,000 TTHIF E &R (20084F : 284,000/8THIEAL) EHFAERES - FERSEHRENFEIEIL TEMGERRE
|EJ/R °

)

Donations 85X
During the year, HKIAAT made no charitable donation (2008: HK$180,000).

FAMERBELZEZIEN (20084 : 180,00087T) °



REPORT OF THE BOARD B &4

Board members =&} &
The board members in office during the year and at the date of the report were:

FARRAHRE B ERAOESSKRENT

President 'gR
Kong Chi How, Johnson IER
Vice-presidents BlEr
Cho Lung Pui Lan, Stella T BEIMAS
Li Tak Ming, Andy =R
Other board members HipiEE
Chan Cheuk Hay PR
Doug Oxley FEE
Wong Yue Ting, Thomas BERE
Yau Wan Wah, Lindy R ERZE

In accordance with Article 50 of HKIAAT's Articles of Association, all board members are appointed by the Institute of whom at
least a majority are Certified Public Accountants registered with the Institute. In accordance with Article 53 of HKIAAT's Articles
of Association, all board members shall hold office until notice of revocation of such appointment is given or until notice of
retirement or resignation is given by such members.

No contract of significance, other than as disclosed in note 17, to which HKIAAT was a party and in which a board member had
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REMEAANFE0G  MEEEEREEHRGRE  EFRIRBOKEEARLGEMHBX G - REMBSARIFE35 - A7
EREEENEAIREEEHAHRERANRLNEEEEEHRELBHEBARL -

BREAZEALRZOFBEHNARBRRMTI75 - HEMBIT L EMRBESKNERE ERERMNFRIFANERNSENIAER
ZEBEEK -

Auditors 1% Sk

HKIAAT's auditor, Messrs. Wong Brothers & Co., Certified Public Accountants, retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Hez ZEBMRESMERN (BENXE) EREER BRTREERET

On behalf of the Board RERES
KONG Chi How, Johnson ILE
President gk

Hong Kong, 20 October 2009 &% - 2009410 A20H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT %3/ #% &M &

To the Members of Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by guarantee)
ARV e S ARARER

(ABERAANEBK L BREDER)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited
("HKIAAT") set out on pages 28 to 55, which comprise the statements of financial position of HKIAAT and its subsidiary (“the
Group”) and HKIAAT as at 30 June 2009 and statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in members’ equity
and the statements of cash flows of the Group and HKIAAT for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

AEBAOATERE “Hf" ) ETRBERINENE28E5EN B BB HEARIRUATER "BE" ) REMBES(A T
B ORET NEAMBEERE - HMBREREEN2009F6 A30RNEELHEMHEMARLEEZH ILFENEE LGS 2 E NS
R BREHRMASRER - UNTESTBRMEMEL MMM ERE -

Board members’ responsibility for the financial statements 2 E & il HRE B RENET

The board members of HKIAAT are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ( “the Institute” ) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

HERESRARERBEEEGHMAGUATER "2 )REMNEBMBREEI N (FRERREN) REREEMA IR
ZEMBHE - EEEBRER - BRLGERRHNIEEM A TR G RRAABONIES - AERERR NFHER KGR
HEHRMEHNEARHRRA  RENEAEENSFEER - RREATMER RN GSHER

Auditor’s responsibility 11 EfRY & 1E

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the board members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT &1/ #% &R S

I]]]I]

BAMETERERMNBZHZEFMBRRELER - WIER (FAERRIKF
BHMEH - HATERARENATHEREMA LR ESOREETREE -

) - EREEHESERS  BRULZIN - KEREH

\

BAERBEASE M (BBETER) ETER - BLEERRMETERRL - WREIRNTES  RESERTUENE
BERRE A EAERERBRL -

BRSRPITREFNERERYBRERAHSBRBRBEERNEXZRE - MEEMNREFBURNZ AN FE - BIEFHE RNk
i} %ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁikfﬁﬁﬁ LR © FERHA % FRRE - ZBEAEZ EEZRBREREEM A IR B RK AR
MARERES] - LRFHEEMBZIRF - BXFSERBENOAIEFNMERERER - ERNTERFEEFEMRANSTTBERMA
B MATER EI’J SRHAFTHAEN - URFHEM BRERNERIIHA A -

BHEE  RAIMESHNEREESRRMES I ARMINESE LR HER -

Opinion ER

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and HKIAAT as at 30 June
2009 and of the surplus and cash flows of the Group and HKIAAT for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HPIRR - ZEGEAVBRRERBEEYBRELNEEM D FHRR T £E RIHER2009F6 A30H A EBM N K EEEHE
BEZB LFENBKNRERE - YRR (BBERRED) ZRHHE -

Wong Brothers & Co. RIGEENEHR
Certified Public Accountants BANEGETRD

Hong Kong, 20 October 2009 &A% - 2009108208



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bf#&HK7 5%

Group HKIAAT
=M e
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaF FHT FHET FHET FHIT
Non-current assets
JERBEE
Fixed assets EE & &= 4 179 68 179 68
Investment in a subsidiary K B##ERE 5 - - - -
Deferred tax assets ¥EIEFSTEEE 6 64 - 64 -
243 68 243 68
Current assets
iRED
Inventories 7 & 18 540 18 540
Receivables fEHFIR 7 662 236 678 234
Deposits and prepayments
e RIBNHIE 21 21 21 21
Time deposits with original maturities over
three months
[REEA B BB =18 A M EEER 27,128 - 27,128 -
Cash and cash equivalents
RekERREIER 8 17,620 43,369 17,240 43,171
45,449 44,166 45,085 43,966
Current liabilities
ENEIE
Subscriptions and fees received in advance
EkeE RIS 9 (1,708) (1,810) (1,708) (1,810)
Amount due to ultimate holding company
AR S ey /NGO (1,286) (602) (1,286) (602)
Payables and accruals
FERTRIE R FEAST B A 10 (3,334) (3,985) (2,983) (3,796)
Current tax liabilities &N EiFRIBE B (& (54) (26) (54) (26)
(6,382) (6,423) (6,031) (6,234)
Net current assets
mENEE PR 39,067 37,743 39,054 37,732
39,310 37,811 39,297 37,800
Members' equity
GE#ER
General fund ELEES 33,300 31,801 33,287 31,790
Capital fund EAE S 6,010 6,010 6,010 6,010
39,310 37.811 39,297 37,800
Approved by the board on 20 October 2009
BEE2M2009F 108208 #h&
KONG Chi How, Johnson CHO LUNG Pui Lan, Stella
LR LREfME
President Vice-president

&5 Alek



STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £EW &

Group HKIAAT
£H me
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BIT THET AT FETT
Subscriptions and fees &% & Ui & 12 5,255 4,923 5,255 4,923
Other revenue EUg A 13 7,196 5,582 7,196 5,682
Total revenue WA 42%8 12,451 10,505 12,451 10,505
Other income E sz 14 1,501 3,057 1,499 3,052
Expenses X (12,489) (13,846) (12,489) (13,858)
Surplus/(deficit) before tax
TREIEER/ (B54Y) 15 1,463 (284) 1,461 (301)
Income tax credit 14K F 1A 6 36 - 36 -
Surplus/(deficit) and total comprehensive
income for the year
FEREN/ (B4 RemIRiEsn 1,499 (284) 1,497 (301)




STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY & Efgxsetd=

2009
Group HKIAAT
£E meE
General fund Capital fund Total  General fund Capital fund Total
LEES P a5t LEER = F: Ha5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FAET FAET FHET
At 1 July 2008
1200857 H1H 31,801 6,010 37,811 31,790 6,010 37,800
Total comprehensive
income
ZHEW AR 1,499 - 1,499 1,497 - 1,497
At 30 June 2009
7200946 530H 33,300 6,010 39,310 33,287 6,010 39,297
2008
Group HKIAAT
£H e
General fund Capital fund Total General fund Capital fund Total
TRES BEARER et TRES BARER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET THET
At 1 July 2007
M2007F7A1H 32,085 5,275 37,360 32,091 5,275 37,366
Capital levy from
members and students
SERBLEERHE - 735 735 - 735 735
Total comprehensive
income
THEKRERE (284) - (284) (301) - (301)
At 30 June 2008
7200846 H30H 31,801 6,010 37,811 31,790 6,010 37,800




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS IR&REx

2009

No{e
HiaF

HK$/000
FHET

Group
%

2008

HK$'000
TR

2009

HK$’000
AT

HKIAAT
e

2008

HK$'000
TATT

Cash flows from operating activities
EETHHEESRE

Surplus/(deficit) before tax &t i & &4/ (Ei4h)
Adjustments for LT

Depreciation $1&

Obsolete inventories written off ¥ #REE1F &

1,463

46
295

(284)

25

1,461

46
295

(301)

25

Operating cash flows before
working capital changes
FAEEEERRICESERERE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
A ROR /()
Increase in receivables FEYGRIEIE N
Increase in time deposits with original
maturities over three months
JREIEA BB 8 = & A & F A7 g N
(Decrease)/increase in subscriptions and
fees received in advance
B & R E (R )AE N
(Decrease)/increase in payables and
accruals
JEAST TRIB K FE A5 B A (R 4 /48 hn
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to

ultimate holding company
JE T ERAR IS AR A R R IEIE D0/ CRLA)

1,804

227
(426)

(27,128)

(102)

(651)

684

(259)

(11
(19)

219

1,549

(1,713)

1,802

227
(444)

(27,128)

(102)

(813)

684

(276)

(11)
(25)

219

1,566

(1,713)

Net cash utilized in operating activities

EEREEACIRE S

(25,592)

(234)

(25,774)

(240)

Cash flows from investing activities
REFHCRTAE
Purchase of fixed assets f& & [ElE & &

(157)

(16)

(157)

(16)

Net cash utilized in investing activities

REEHERACIRS PR

(157)

(16)

(157)

(16)

Cash flows from financing activities
MEETBCHERE
Capital levy received EUWE R &

735

735

Net cash generated by financing activities

MEETHEE RS IFE

735

735

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents
REREFFIFEIER (R /AEINEEE

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

FcRE RERBESHEA

(25,749)

43,369

485

42,884

(25,931)

43,171

479

42,692

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
FRZBEERFRFSEE

8 17,620

43,369

17,240

43,171




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7 zxf15T

1. Principal activities and registered office &= Z %7 N s T it £z

The Group refers to Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited ( “HKIAAT" ) and its subsidiary, The
HKIAAT Scholarship Trust Fund.

HKIAAT, being a company limited by guarantee under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was incorporated in August
1988 under the auspices of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ( “the Institute” ). Its registered office
is located at 27/F., Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. lIts principal activities are the award
of the “Accredited Accounting Technician” qualification through conducting professional examinations, offering of premier
member and student services, accreditation of relevant sub-degree qualifications and promotion of the study of accountancy
among sub-degree holders and secondary school students.

The HKIAAT Scholarship Trust Fund ( “the Trust Fund” ) was formed under a trust deed dated 21 June 1999 for educational
purposes and in particular for the provision of scholarship to persons studying for the examinations held by HKIAAT. The
trustees are the president, the immediate past president and the vice-president of HKIAAT.

KEETAMBEHHEERAR ("HE") RAWNBRBE LB HERBSETES -

BERN1988FSAEBRE GRS ("A") XFT - RE (FERBEH) %?ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’]ﬂi‘{%ﬁﬁﬁ"_ o HEH M FE bt
RELEBHFE2RNER2ISRALRNE7E - RENIEXHABEBMBEXEAURR [RAVHETE] ER%  EHEH
&8 RBERY - PERRFBUERREIIFRUA LT RTREHE G -

BENBETHERBSEAES ("EREL") BRIE19995F6 B21 HAIMERRAKIIEHRE AR - WKHIR2EH &M
BMEANALTRHEES - EENXTARHBEER - LESRERIER -

2. Principal accounting policies £ 2 @&

a. Basis of preparation {RSE %
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASSs)
and Interpretations issued by the Institute. These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

MBRRDIBEBEEAUHHRELNRE - FAUHRE LR MESUHRELEL  FESHEARASRMES -
L ERBRERKAELRAERE - BREHAIN - IEBEHIRAARITAL -

RETATAUBRELENNMBHRREBREATENRERSHET - GHEREREERAEE ST BERR (L HE - 8
LR E AR B RIBE L &R R EMBRERELAN - BRAERFIERELMEETTR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) = 2 & 5HER (8)

b. Early adoption of applicable new/revised HKFRSs 12 a1 HR48E BB ET/ES T E ISR E %R
The Institute has issued new/revised HKFRSs up to 30 June 2009 that are available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following is applicable to the Group's financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments) “Improvements to HKFRSs 2008"
- HKAS 38 Intangible Assets —Advertising and promotional activities

The amendment to HKAS 38 made under “Improvements to HKFRSs 2008" has no material impact on the Group's
financial statements as the amendment was consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.

BE2009F6 H30H » AECMMHI/MER] T WEBMFRMELEL  AIHEEAEE AT MIRATRG - b - TIETNE
BB REENBEAN BN M ERE

EEMBREER (BF])  "H2008FEHEMBMEERRBCE"

- HEAERERF38Y - B EE - ES 2 eiHLD

RIBE “H2008FEBMBMELRNSCE" BEBSHLERFEBRNETHEENMBRIJIBEATE - ARZIETHE
BORAMETBER 2 e

c. Effects of new/revised HKFRSs that were issued after 30 June 2009 and up to the date of approval of the
financial statements
200946 A 30 H A EH F5 Rt A BIRMR /ST E AR B R EENNE
The Institute has issued certain revised HKFRSs after 30 June 2009 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements, the Group has assessed that these revised HKFRSs are not applicable to the Group's operations.

20096 AS0H AR EM AT BMAR - AGB\M T —LEFT THREBMBREER - KELENEER - RRELET TH
FRMHREEANTEAREENEE -

d. Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries & &4 EIH B3
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of HKIAAT and its subsidiary. All inter-company
transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. A subsidiary is an entity over which
HKIAAT has control, which is defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

In HKIAAT's statement of financial position, the investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment charges.

RAVBRREEHE RENBRENTHERE - BBRZMERS &5 WakFAXHARRRGAIRE FEHE - HBEK
BIEHEREEHZHENOEE - G eRAZRENBREEBRNEN  EMERL IR T RS -

RBERNFBARRKT - B EERENIRERKARESREBBAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) =B & = HE (48)

e. Financial instruments B3 T2
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The Group’s financial assets are classified as receivables, cash and bank balances and are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At each date of the statements of
financial position subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less identified impairment charges (see note 2f).

Financial liabilities include payables and other monetary liabilities. All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

E-REEEERAMBTAGRGRN—IK - WKEEAMBRABEENUBINEKHER - MBEELERBRAERIE
NRAAREFE - HZYERARE - £EENERT @ U BEEXMBEENRABRTNARNGEXTRBRYBEE R
B REMNBEERBITHR KA

EEMNMBEES AEKFIE BeRIRTET - MIETEMHEMIBEE - WEBRTRAIFFENMNR - BEX T FEER
MHEHNRE - REVERENESEYHRAERR  BLPBEERERN R EAEN#EERAREZCEERERFEZ (R
2f) o

MBABRRERNFEREMEREEE - MEVBABRERORERNTEAENB R ATE -

f. Impairment of financial assets BAFS & AR E
The Group recognizes charges for impaired receivables promptly where there is objective evidence that impairment of a
receivable has occurred. Impairment allowances are assessed individually for significant receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment charge decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment charge is reversed by
reducing the receivable impairment allowance account. The amount of any reversal is recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income.

EHERERBRR DR EYGRIERER - BT ARRRUGIRZRE - HERBUFIREERFFHHRERE

FHRZ - BENSERD - MRDOEEAITEBAGSRERERRRELENEN - AR ARNRERS B EFHERIKE
IR 2RI AR EWER °

g. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities B17% & LR T5 B &% S
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or where the Group
has transferred its contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership; or where control is not retained. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are
extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

ERMBEERICRSROENZE - IEEER T RRMBEERSRNARRMNYESD L8R T HARN 2 AR ED
o REHRTIBEER  RERRNMBEE - EVHAEREE  NEEHRETT - MEREIHE - ZEERNTEE

&e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&R3EF1:E

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) =B &:HHE (48)

h. Impairment of non-financial assets JEBAFS B R E
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each date of the statements of financial position to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment charge previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased. |If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of
an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment charge is recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An impairment charge is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
and which results in an increase in the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment charges is limited to the asset’'s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment charge been recognized in prior years. Reversals
of impairment charges are credited to the statements of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.

BEYBRAKRBBEENLRRIMNBEARR  NEESEHREERENTR - SAEERNBERS TBFEXBA
Do MAREFRSR - AFHEEREENAINQHE - EENAIREBEEEAABRIERAEEREEMEZRSE ° W
BEEMRAEBAEIWROEE  AR2EKREREDRERSE -

MR AT AR S IR B TS BT B B L BB ERE - R EARSEGE - TERARRBEFE TR
BRENBR FEENREE - RERDHBERREDETH A 2ENEE -

i. Fixed assets EIE&&E

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges (see note 2h). The cost of an item
of fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the items of fixed assets to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Expenditure incurred
after the item of fixed asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance cost, is normally charged
to the statements of comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the item of fixed asset and where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalized as an
additional cost to that asset or as a replacement. An item of fixed asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income in the period the item is derecognized, is the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item.

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value. The residual values and useful lives of assets and the depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes will be accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate. If the residual value of an asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset’s carrying amount, no
depreciation is charged.

The estimated useful lives of fixed asset are as follows:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 310 10 years

ltems of a capital nature costing less than HK$1,000 are recognized as expenses in the year of acquisition.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7 zxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) =B &:HBUR (48)

Fixed assets (continued) BEIFE & ZE (&)

BT EEZNNBRBENERAABEBAR (Rf:Eon) -BTEEBECKABREEBEEE (BEEORETARENE
BEf - BINBREENNREE) URFLEFIREEERTRREEMNE MARETS ROEREEKAS - BEEEBERA
BEGREENRY HEEBREREER  —RRELEHBEFFAZAKEE - WEBEFRXBEARIEs R ERZETEEEE
FRiEfpESmFz - BZBEERARASHE A ERNMLAZBEAENEINEAXEENS - EEEZEETEE
B NIEEARREEZEECTEET SRR RNCEN R  ZEETEEEE WZE st AZEZEE EHN2E
WREkHNEE I MEERARBEW N FEMEZIABRABECE

BEEERUBAVENE  IREMGFAIERFHME AT ENEE - AIMENBBEREER AL EMREBERFGRERRE
T o BENRREE  AIRAFHRNENENSEVREA R ETRN - MEHME RFTEER - RIBABEEEIIEGE
SHEERE - MEENRSREEEESNREREREE - A MERE -

BEIEBENMGTAERFRHNT -
B B MR 3E10%F
FXAMERA 11,0008 TR E AR B MBS E AR ST AR ©

Inventories &

Inventories, comprising publications held for sale, are stated at the lower of cost determined on a weighted average
basis, and net realizable value. Cost includes direct costs of purchases and incidental costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less all estimated costs to be incurred prior to sale.

FEREFEHENET  RINE PR AR ZRFEME cBREEAR - KARRERBERAREFEZRE AR
EARRFEROER o AIZRFERABEET NG EEREASAMSNERAEE -

. Cash and cash equivalents IH& R ZERIREIER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

RehFRRLBAERTERERE  FRROMEMSHEBNEHERNERKIHAR=EARN) - RERSR
EXRE - RS AARBAREEYENEBRRSERTINRTEXARSLERARSBEN D -

Capital levy EABE
The capital levy is an equity contribution from members and students, and is taken to the capital fund in the year of
receipt.

BEAMBREERBENEATR  RERFEFAELES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) £ 2@ &K (8)
m.Revenue recognition Y AFESR
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably.
Annual subscription fees are recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription period.
First registration fees are recognized on entitlement.
Exemption income are recognized upon approval of the respective applications.
Income from examinations, seminars and courses is recognized upon completion of services provided.
Interest income from bank deposits and savings accounts is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest method.
WAREBW R IR T REASRASEE - A RBMA R A SEt SR HRALR ©
FESEASREMMIZEREERAR
BRGEMENESE B ERBERAR
ERARREN AP REIERERNR -
ZH - g RERZUA R FE R RIS B E R AR o

RITHEF LR P D eR B UGG EE A R ERR A R ARRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) = Z&:HBUR (48)

n. Income tax 1218
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable surplus for the year. Taxable surplus differs from surplus as reported in the
statements of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statements of financial
position.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable surplus,
and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable surplus will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investment in a subsidiary where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of the statements of financial position and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable surplus will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statements of comprehensive income, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to general or capital funds, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in general
or capital funds.

THIAR S 15 A HA PR A TR ELR AR R TR Y 48D o

AR B AT ERBARSHE - ERBARE N2 EIGERASI AR - RABRMARL T RELMFEN
ERRUE B RAEMAY - FTERERH AT TIRIAR « £ ABRER ERYBRNR DO AR R RO
K -

ERBARREBEVHHRRAINEERABENRAERF; EFRRANBHRANERNE 2 ZEMBREGREENIE - RAE
FAtE  FTARRMECEE —RERRETHBRE - MA LT CEBANER A L IRERN B RN R HHNERT
ERRELEHREE °

R BRI MR BB REAELNERNECER  MARTCLERAER RS RETSRED  AERERTSRAR
ERERIARRE -

EEFBEEMREESEMBGHONE BETRY - HABAEEEHERNBHRAREFE2 RN X FEERENE
FOER - RIERERIREEMNIREESHEHIR

BRERBEREEEBAGAERAREENPRHZEARERGE - BERIAG AZHENREER @ EESRERFALTBESH
BEXREENAR @ - HRIATBESHERES °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) £ Z& 5K (&)

o. Employee benefits {EE{EF]

i. Retirement benefits costs IB{REF A
The Group operates two approved defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for employees: a Mandatory
Provident Fund (MPF) Exempted Occupational Retirement Scheme and a MPF Scheme under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The contributions payable to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
statements of comprehensive income as incurred.

SEREERUMER A NREHFEARENTE - 2R AERBEEPRRN LB EFTE MRE (RFELTREFTE
Bl RuMBERETE -

SEFEHFEARBANEFINEFRBEERAAZEKRER

ii. Employee leave entitlements {2k {R&F)
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by the employees up to the date of the statements of
financial position.

BB TS AMERBSERT HRBAK - £EHEERREGHHRE B IR EORI T E 45 RO K EIEH
5 -

p. Related parties R5EA L

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel and/or their close family members) or entities and include entities which
are controlled or under the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those parties are individuals, and
post-employment benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

HEETIIER - HAIALEIREFREEERE  ERE A ERIMBREFNZALTHAHZA TR HREERRER L
RZRBEFEARZESN - R2TA X‘}Z%l,\ui)\:tﬂyjﬁl—ﬁ HEERNBERZE - BEALAERENALEIZEZER
ABR/BEERRE)RER Y ERESEAEENENALMEFXXEEAZENER  URAKENREEERE
M EERIE BT MR MR EEENTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7 zxf15T

3. Financial instruments by category 1% T A5 %8

The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the date of the statements of financial position are as
follows:

RETERRR A SBE TRREENT

Group HKIAAT
£H =
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Financial assets BAF5 & &
Receivables F&HIR X 662 236 678 234
Time deposits with original maturities over three
months
JREIHA A BB =1 B &) E BiTF K 27,128 - 27,128 -
Cash and cash equivalents
Ao hERHRSIER 17,620 43,369 17,240 43,171
45,410 43,605 45,046 43,405
Financial liabilities BT &{&
Payables and accruals (note 10)
ENRIENRENER (FfEE10) 3,092 3,788 2,141 3,599
Amount due to ultimate holding company
JEAN B AR PERR X B FRIR 1,286 602 1,286 602
4,378 4,390 4,027 4,201

The fair value of the Group’s and HKIAAT's financial instruments at the date of the statements of financial position
approximates their carrying amount.

RE#RREKA - KERBENTHETANRIAEARNEFRIKREE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

4. Fixed assets BETEEE

2009
Furniture Computer and

and fixture equipment Total

R REE ey e &5t
Group and HKIAAT HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SERHE FHT FHT F#T
Net book value at 1 July 2008 7200847 A1 HMIREFE 25 43 68
Additions NE - 157 157
Depreciation #T& (8) (38) (46)
Net book value at 30 June 2009 72200946 A 30 H FIRE FE 17 162 179
At cost B 39 235 274
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 H#7E& KRB (22) (73) (95)
Net book value at 30 June 2009 2200946 A 30 H FY IR /F1E 17 162 179

2008
Furniture Computer and

and fixture equipment To‘ial

BRREE B R st
Group and HKIAAT HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEMGE FHT FHT FAT
Net book value at 1 July 2007 74200747 A1 H®IRE FE 33 44 77
Additions RNE - 16 16
Depreciation #T& (8) (17) (25)
Net book value at 30 June 2008 72200846 A 30 H IR /F(E 25 43 68
At cost AN 39 78 117
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 & #7 & KRB (14) (35) (49)

Net book value at 30 June 2008 7200846 A 30 H AR I F{E 25 43 68




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

5.

Investment in a subsidiary [ B#EZE
The subsidiary of HKIAAT is the Trust Fund.

The Trust Fund was set up with no capital injection by HKIAAT. It is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of HKIAAT's
control over it.

Donations made by HKIAAT to the Trust Fund are treated as expenses in HKIAAT's statement of comprehensive income and
as income in the Trust Fund'’s statement of comprehensive income and are eliminated on consolidation.

HeEnMBRESTEMBEH HERESERES -

HERERBEVBEH NS RESERESHNIRAER - ZEXES X HEIES - FHIERKBEERE -
BEEETESEHZBR  ERENEERERTEAXHERE AERESNEZARERTIERERERE - NBEFRR
IR B RS o

Income tax credit 313K 5118

Group HKIAAT
S k=
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Current tax {18
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
REFBRBNEHRERE 54 - 54 -
Over-provision in prior years
BEFEREER (26) - (26) -
28 - 28 -
Deferred tax SEZEMRIE
Deferred tax credit relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences
BREE RELE L EESHRIER IR (64) - (64) -
(36) - (36) -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated taxable surplus arising in Hong Kong during the
year after offsetting against tax losses brought forward from prior year of HK$737,000.
EBFERIBIEFAREEENHTEREESE SN E—FEE/737,0008 T HIEE18181216.5% (2008F : 16.5%) 5TE
Bt o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

6. Income tax credit (continued) f1#XF:18 (4&)

Deferred tax assets SEIEFRIBE &
Details of deferred tax assets recognized in the statements of financial position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

SEAMBARRROBELERAEENPHAREFANESHINT -

Accredited Other
tax temporary
depreciation difference
INEFRIE HithEsd Total
e =i st
Group and HKIAAT HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SEEMRE FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2007, 30 June 2008 and 1 July 2008
7200797418 - 200846 4308 &2008F7H1H - - -
(Charged)/credited to the statements of comprehensive income
() At AZE MR &R (11) 75 64

At 30 June 2009
7200946 A30H (11) 75 64




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

6. Income tax credit (continued) F0IEFIE (48)

The reconciliation between income tax credit and surplus/(deficit) before tax at the applicable rate (i.e. the statutory tax rate
for the jurisdiction in which HKIAAT and its subsidiary are domiciled) is as follows:

EARE (AHE REMEEEAERFEERE) tE NN IR R AR (B H iR T

Group HKIAAT
%5 e
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET TFHT FHET
Surplus/(deficit) before tax
R R BN (E3AL) 1,463 (284) 1,461 (301)

Tax at the applicable rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%)
REARE16.5% (20084 : 16.5%) T EMHIE 241 (47) 241 (50)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in

determining taxable surplus 5
STEERN AR T MR R EE - 82 - 82
Tax effect on income that is not assessable in

determlmng taxable surplus

AN BRI ASRN MR RETE (56) (166) (56) (163)
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses previously not
recognized

£/ 2 B AR BIAEEN RIS E (122) - (122) -

Tax effect of tax losses not recognized

REBNRIABEENORGZE - 131 - 131

Over-provision in prior years

BEFERBER (26) - (26) -

Others Hib (73) - (73) -
(36) - (36) -

As at 30 June 2008, HKIAAT had tax losses of HK$737,000 that are available to offset against its future taxable profits with
an unrestricted time limit from the year the losses were incurred. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect
of these tax losses as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilized.

7200856 A30H * H&A737,0008 TTHRIAETE @ (EEIR A FERAAEEH SRR ERT B - RBRRERS - BN
EEEBRNELRAEE R AER - AABTEEL R AHABERRKIENERT R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

7. Receivables JEYFIE

Group HKIAAT
£HE ne

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT FHET THT

Accounts receivableE IR X 662 236 662 234
Amount due from a subsidiary

JRE L B B 4 X IR - - 16 -

662 236 678 234

a. Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured interest free and repayable on demand.

FEUP BB IR AR IR - TETALE - BB E]

b. The ageing analysis of receivables at the date of the statements of financial position that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

REAEA R TR B AR AR E R UGB R IR D AT A0 T

Group HKIAAT
£& e

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired BE i 8t K s (B - - 16 -
Less than 30 days past due BHI~E30H 569 - 569 -
31 to 90 days past due #18331Z=90H 19 236 19 234
91 to 180 days past due #HI91E180H 8 - 8 -
181 to 270 days past due #8§181Z=270H 31 - 31 -
Over 270 days past due 183838270 H 35 - 35 -
662 236 662 234
662 236 678 234

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent parties that have a good track record
with the Group and HKIAAT. Based on past experience, management is of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group and HKIAAT do not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the date of the statements of financial position is the carrying amount of
these receivables.

BHEREENEEFREEELHERRIXHTHENBEIALER - RIBEAELR  BEENBME  RBLERZFR
AEESRETRERE  AAERRERBLRZE(  ERSRENGHRDNA RIS 2BREREN - KERIHEHZERA
MRS IR A AR R EBER iﬂaﬁbﬂ RETEIRRER A - HARE R ER S L RS RR IR E (E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7 zxf15T

8. Cash and cash equivalents 3 & M ERIE ¢ IEH

Group HKIAAT
£ me
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$fO(E) HK$'000 HK$fO(E)
FHET FHBT FHET FHBT
Bank balances $R1741F
- Time deposits with original maturities within
three months

JREIEA R B =18 A AR E BifF 3K 7,880 36,712 7,880 36,712
- Savings accounts FEEF O 4,628 5,237 4,253 5,044
- Current accounts 2K~ A 5,112 1,405 5,107 1,400
Cash on hand #58& - 15 - 15
17,620 43,369 17,240 43,171

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents is an amount of HK$380,000 (2008: HK$198,000) which has been
designated for the provision of scholarships to students studying for examinations organized by HKIAAT.

SENRSRERBELIER A —F/RE380,00087T (20084 : 198,000 7T) HIFKIE @ EREERADMGEEANB LR
REMRBETR -

9. Subscriptions and fees received in advance B & & & I B

2009 2008
Group and HKIAAT HK$'000 HK$'000
EBNIGE FHET FAT
Subscriptions received in advance B & & 1,707 1,764
Other fees received in advance EhFEWE 1 46
1,708 1,810

The Group charges its members and students an annual subscription fee for renewal of membership based on a calendar
year (i.e. from 1 January to 31 December), which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the subscription period.
Subscriptions received in advance represent the unearned subscription income for the period from 1 July to 31 December.

Other fees received in advance relate to examinations and advertising yet to be conducted at the date of the statements of
financial position.

EERBAES (WE1A1BE12A310) AESERBLENREFESBUNESE 22BN BN EGEEAAR - FAlkE
BERKXEB7TA1BR12A31 BHEMNETE S Bk o

HitmER RESHRNARERERMGINNE B HRBITHEARTIENES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

10. Payables and accruals & 5078 & B &

Group HKIAAT
£E me
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
Payables FE{J5XIE 783 398 432 -
Amount due to a subsidiary
FEAS P B M B R - - - 209
Accruals FE1SE A 2,309 3,390 2,309 3,390
Financial liabilities (note 3)
Bam (fzs) 3,092 3,788 2,141 3,599
Employee leave entitlements
12 SR REET 242 197 242 197
3,334 3,985 2,983 3,796

The maturity profile of the Group’s and HKIAAT's financial liabilities included in “Payables and accruals” as at the date of
the statements of financial position, based on the contracted undiscounted payments, is as follows:

REAORBANTE  KERBHENYHRETH "BNFALEMNER" RYHRARBNBMEINET

Group HKIAAT
' i

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Within 30 days A30B A 2,242 2,623 2,242 2,225
Between 31 to 90 days 31Z290H 412 468 412 468
Between 91 to 180 days 91£&180H 322 160 87 160
Between 181 to 270 days 181&2270H 116 537 - 537

Over 270 days #2i8270H - - - 209
3,092 3,788 2,741 3,699




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

11. Capital fund EAES
The capital fund of HKIAAT represents a capital levy from its members and students to meet future office expansion.
Effective as from current year, no capital levy is imposed while in the preceding year the rates of levy were HK$100 and
HK$80 for each member and student respectively. The rates of levy were decided annually by the board of HKIAAT.
BENEAESIREGERBENEAHE  AUBNARKOPRLAERATE - NEAFERNESEEENBERDNEED
AIAR100BTTRE0EBTT - BAFER  WEEAE - BAHENHRHTEMBSHHSEESEFRE -

12. Subscriptions and fees & & & g &

Group HKIAAT
£H =
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FET
Annual subscription fees fEEEH
Members & 8 1,047 748 1,047 748
Students B4 2,895 2,644 2,895 2,644
Professional bridging students B2 Z& R &4 - 382 - 382
First registration fees BT RE A E
Members € & 259 306 259 306
Students B4 1,054 755 1,054 755
Professional bridging students B2 E& R &4 - 88 - 88
5,255 4,923 5,255 4,923
13. Other revenue E bl A
Group HKIAAT
£E e
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Exemption income E R E Rl 25 2,583 1,481 2,583 1,481
Income from examinations £ s Uiz8 2,438 3,997 2,438 3,997
Accreditation income AUz 1,286 48 1,286 48
Income from seminars and courses
et & KRR R 874 39 874 39
Income from member and student activities
2ERBLETFEHKE 15 17 15 17

7,196 5,682 7,196 5,582




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

14. Other income E Az

Group HKIAAT
£H wE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET F#EmT FiET
Sales of goods & MmIHE 648 1,570 648 1,570
Interest income Fll 84z 341 984 341 981
Income from advertisements placed in the journals
EHIEE W 189 301 189 301
Royalty income hRAE RS 144 37 144 37
Others EAtb 179 165 177 163
1,501 3,057 1,499 3,052
15. Surplus/(deficit) before tax it Bl & &4/ (B 4L)
Group HKIAAT
£H mE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FHET FET FHET
Surplus/(deficit) before tax has been arrived at
after charging:
RAIRER/ (B54t) BHIPRTHIRIE :
Employee benefits 18 & &7
- Salaries, wages and allowances
e ITEKER 4,330 3,717 4,330 3,717
- Provident fund contributions & itk 465 384 465 384
- Other employee benefits H 1&g 127 - 633 - 633
Cost of goods sold $5& & @A 202 654 202 654
Donations 8% - - - 180
Obsolete inventories written off 4z 4 REFE 295 - 295 -
Auditor's remuneration Z A0 & 49 39 49 39
Depreciation #1& 46 25 46 25

a. Employee benefits {EE24EF)
The Institute provided human resources support to HKIAAT and recharged for the direct staff employment costs to
HKIAAT on a cost recovery basis. At 30 June 2009, the number of staff provided by the Institute is 18 (2008: 17).

ARERIBERET ANEREZIE - WEKAKREEAERREWR TEAEINEEER - H2009F6A308 + AERHEH
BT ABUA18A (20085 : 17A) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7 zxf15T

16. Board members’ remuneration JEE& 5 2 i &

Details of board members’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Ordinance are as follows. Key
management is fully provided by the Institute.
BIE (RRMEDD) F161EBKBENBEEFEXEMESFENT - EZERBEASSHBLGREM -

Group HKIAAT
£H HeE

2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 H K$:00_0 HK$'000 H K$'OO_O
FAET FHET FAET FET
As board members #E{TIEE - - - -
Other emolumentsE b Bl & 74 60 74 60
74 60 74 60

Other emoluments represent study text royalties and honoraria paid to five board members for services provided to HKIAAT
including examiner fees and speaker fees.

HitBeEm AR EER B NNERZERERE MFIR - (ERABEEREHHRM - BEEEENESE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

17. Related party transactions Bi#E A 325

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions with its related parties:
SEFNEMEALTHNEARZZET

a. The HKIAAT Scholarship Trust Fund HEEM B G TRESEFTES
In the last financial year, donations to the Trust Fund were made at the discretion of the Board after considering the
recommendation of the Institute's administration and finance committee.

During the year, no donation was made to the Trust Fund (2008: HK$180,000).

At 30 June 2009, there was a balance of HK$16,000 due from the Trust Fund (2008: amount due to the Trust Fund of
HK$209,000).

RE—EFREE  AETESH I EBRRRHBENESEEEEAETHREVBZEENHEERERBERTE -
AKERZEREEESIERZERI (20084 : 180,000/ 7T) °
20096 A30H @ FEWSFEE S K44 /516,000/8 7T (20084 : FERHEEE S FUIAA209,000/87T) -

b. Board members BEEEE
In the normal course of operations, HKIAAT paid honoraria to recipients, some of whom are board members or parties
related to board members, for various services provided to HKIAAT such as giving examination assessments. The total
amount paid to board members has been disclosed in note 16. The total amount paid to parties related to board members
in this relation was not significant.

An amount of HK$56,000 (2008: Nil) was received from Hong Kong College of Technology for re-accreditation exercise.
In both the current and prior years, one of the board members was key management personnel of Hong Kong College of
Technology.

HEERELETTERAEEHEERERBENEBMEATERANALNGIR  (ERHEMERBOEHRM - mAEHIEF
EoNTEEGHENBECNHEI6KRE - N TEESKNENFEALTHRBRL TEX -

HENEEEREESRULE] —FHBI56,000/87T (20084 : ) MFR @ FRRIEENELE - RAFERBEFE - AP
—(BEEERERELBEXELERNEREEASR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rzxf15T

17. Related party transactions (continued) B8:#E A £ 5 (48)

c. The Institute N g
The Institute, a corporate body incorporated in Hong Kong, is the ultimate holding company of HKIAAT. During the year,
the Institute charged service fees of HK$2,272,000 (2008: HK$2,272,000) to HKIAAT for management, rental and other
services provided to HKIAAT at agreed terms. A total staff employment costs of HK$4,795,000 (2008: HK$4,101,000) was
also recharged to HKIAAT on a cost recovery basis.

During the year, HKIAAT organized the professional bridging examination on behalf of the Institute. The net receipts
and payments of HK$863,000 (2008: Nil) related to the examination was transferred to the Institute and included in the
balance with the Institute. At 30 June 2009, there is a balance of HK$1,286,000 (2008: HK$602,000) due to the Institute.
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

REERBBRILNEE  EHENREIERDR] » 2ERAFRNZRREREHEUE2,272,0005 7T (20084 :
2,272,000 70) RIS E - MEER - HERETIRENME - 2SI AW ENEAAE MBS UER T —$ 458 54,795,000
T (20084 : 4,101,000 7T) WETERER -

BERAFARKAGHEE T —XEXEEEH - WESRRUSIFHES63,000/87T (20085 « ) CDEARE - Wit AR
NEHERAEEE - R200956 A30H - ERT A HIEREES1,286,000/8 7T (20084 : 602,000/ 7T) © @Ak sRIL AR - A5HA
B ERBAREE -

18. Financial risk management 81 7 & & 1

Financial instruments consist of receivables, cash and bank balances, amount due to ultimate holding company, payables
and accruals. Being member-based organizations, the Group and HKIAAT carry as little risks from financial instruments as
practicable. The Group and HKIAAT are exposed to various financial risks which are discussed below:

BB TABREEREFIE R RRTER  BNSEERARFELRENFELENER SELHEIAGERERNK
B BEEEEMENETENER - KB RIHEHRS AT AERBFER

a. Interest rate risk ¥R @ E
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Group's and HKIAAT's exposure to interest rate fluctuations is limited to interest receivable on its time deposits and
savings accounts as at the date of the statements of financial position. Any fluctuation in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates will have impact on the interest income alone as the Group has not borrowed any loans during the year. The
Group and HKIAAT manage the interest rate risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest rates in order to limit
potential adverse impacts on interest income.

FEEBIETH TABERRTEHEEDMEDHNEAR - EERHEONLEDHARERNBENHINE B THTRR
HEFOMEKAS - TEPBNRKENEARDERENSMSEYE  AAEENFERNTSIAEN - EERGS
B SR R B LR HI R Sl B E AT E - b B RN AR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7R Zxf15T

18. Financial risk management (continued) B 7R EIE (48)

a. Interest rate risk (continued) FIZ=E % (48)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with other variables held
constant, of the Group’s and HKIAAT's surplus/(deficit) before tax and equity.

TRERTEEMAEZERSTER - KE LGSOV ATE M/ (BAL) SRR A LM A RN R B EUKIE -

Group HKIAAT
£H A=
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Time deposits EHFK 35,008 36,712 35,008 36,712
Savings accounts &~ O 4,628 5,237 4,253 5,044
39,636 41,949 39,261 41,756
R Fil% EFI% %
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a. % p.a.
Effective interest rate of time deposits
EHITF R BRI 1.01% 2.68% 1.01% 2.68%
Effective interest rate of savings accounts
FEPOZERFE 0.10% 0.04% 0.10% 0.04%
Impact of interest rate deviation F| R &L > §/ 2
Increase in interest rate by 1% F =& H11%
- Increase in surplus before tax/(decrease) in
deficit before tax )
B B AR b0/ B AT S AL OBk ) 396 (419) 393 (418)
- Increase in equity BEzE1E N 396 419 393 418
Decrease in interest rate by 1% F&8 41 1%
- (Decrease) in surplus before tax/increase
in deficit before tax
TR BER R )/ B A S AL AN (396) 419 (393) 418

- Decrease in equity # #5584 (396) (419) (393) (418)
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18. Financial risk management (continued) B1 # @& &I (48)

b. Credit risk 1S FEBE
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

The Group and HKIAAT have designed their credit policies with an objective to minimize their exposure to credit risk. The
Group's and HKIAAT's “receivables” other than the amount due from a subsidiary are very short term in nature and the
associated risk is minimal. Subscriptions, fees, income from examinations, seminars, courses and other activities are
collected in advance. Sale of goods is made in cash or via major credit cards. Income from advertisements placed in the
journals is derived from vendors with an appropriate credit history. Further quantitative data in respect of the exposure to
credit risk arising from receivables are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements.

The Group's surplus cash has been deposited with a number of reputable and creditworthy banks. Term deposits have
maturities of six months or less are held with authorized institutions under the Deposit Protection Scheme guaranteed by
the Hong Kong SAR Government’s Exchange Fund. Management considers there is minimal risk associated with the bank
balances.

ERRREIHERZHF TR B THER -

SELHERAEARENERRE/EREEHRR - R T RKMBRETIR - KERBEN "RUFUR" HE LEIFERE
B AEERERE) - 8E WE - ZH HSE REMEMQEPHRER/AEER - ERHEEBERSRTEEARX
- BEHESWGKEARFERLENHER - WERROWNETRE T REFREENBRERRRNEZEEEH -

SENBHRASOHENE THEARGSBEREANRT - ERFFANFHAEANEANER - YERAEEFRBTINE
HeRARNERREABI THRAISE - ERERAR  ERTEAFAENARL TS -

c. Liquidity risk R84 RE
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group and HKIAAT manage liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and perform periodically cash flow forecasts to monitor future cash flows. The subscription
fees and registration fees from members and students are growing steadily and provide a stable source of funds to the
Group and HKIAAT. The current financial strength of the Group and HKIAAT poses no threat of liquidity to the Group and
HKIAAT.

nBtRERREEEEFEHBINESRENRER SREKEAREXS RYBEESBNVBAERR - KERIHE N
TR HAEIE R IR - WERETRSRTEE  UEEAKELR - @ERBLASEMAMEZBTER - RE
BLipeRETRENESKR - BEERBEEMNTHES  HEELHETERRBDIERE
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19. Capital management & K& 1%
The Group’s and HKIAAT's objectives when managing capital are:

a. to safeguard the Group’s and HKIAAT's ability to continue as going concerns to enable their statutory obligations under
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the trust deed are fulfilled;

b. to develop and maintain the qualification program and continuing professional program for students and members; and

c. to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group's and HKIAAT's operational efficiency.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital to ensure adequacy for both operational and capital needs. All
surpluses are grouped under the general fund for future operational needs which are non-property related. The capital fund
is maintained to ensure sufficient resources are available to finance the future office expansion of HKIAAT.

For the purpose of capital disclosure, the Board regards the members’ equity as capital of the Group.
SERBEEREANBRERE

a. REKERGEEFELEET - BT (BEERRIED) MEXROMRENEEERT

b. RBERGERRIAFEZERRERFFETEEEBRIE

c. REBEERHENLEWNRRMER -

SETHEZREEEN  URREMREHEEREATK - BREHFNETHNRREER K MEEAKRCHALERRE
T o BARGHWENERREEHERSRARBEAHENHAZHE -

HEEEERERRARAEENER  MEREAKENEW



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT %3/ #% &R &

To the Trutees of The HKIAAT Scholorship Trust Fund
BERVMBEAHERESFAREIAA

We have audited the financial statements of The HKIAAT Scholarship Trust Fund ( “the Trust Fund” ) set out on pages 58 to 68,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in accumulated funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

AEBH CATEE "B ) EXRERINENESSE6ENTEN BRI HE RIS EEES (UTHRE ERES" ) UHR
R o WHBHMABIEN2009F6 A0R MNP BMNEMBEZALFENEENRGEER RRESEHRMRERER  URTES
STRCR L R E M R R R o

Trustees' responsibility for the financial statements ZFEAMRMIFRERBRIENETE

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ( “the Institute” ).
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

XREABEBERBELEAE CATHRE "2€" ) BAHNEEMBRELERULAEM A FHIRZEWBERE - EEETE
G Bk ERERMEEN AR BRRAABHONIIES - AERHHRR N FAEBRRGFRERM BB EASER
Rt REFBAMEREE NG BOR - RIRBER TER A B &FHEE -

Auditor's responsibility 1% SEfaYEF(E

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the Trust Deed, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Trust Fund'’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Trust Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT &1/ # &R &

Auditor's responsibility (continued) #Z%ZETBIFE (18)
BMOEELBERMNBREZEVEREELER - WRBEARONRT - EREEITEARS - Rtz - ARERIER
B & - T ERARENATHEMEMALE FSAREEMEL -

BRERBASEMN (BREER]) E1TEZ - GELEREREMETERRE - LRSI MATEL - EEAEMETHEY
BRREE T FAEAEARSERERM -

%*%*ﬁ&%ﬁfﬁffuﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ?fﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁigﬁﬁﬁ%éﬂm%%um FITIE TE VAR Fr BURIA IZ BRED RO #I B - B IERFE KRR

kﬁﬁ&fﬁ(ﬁﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬁiﬁiﬂkﬁ LE) R © FERTf % SRR ?%{Eﬂib\%ﬁﬁi&ﬁ&%%%ﬁvﬁﬁaﬁﬁ’&$iﬂz§IJi&ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
$HE§E’JW*B? B - UERFHEENBZRF - BXFAHETESNHATENNREEREL - ERNERETEXEAMRKABNE
BURAY TA”"I”_*L&FM’E&E’J SAHERTVAENE - ANFHERM BRI BEIHRT A -

BAHEE  RAIMEGSHNEREESRRNES L ARMNESZE RIRHER -

Opinion &
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust Fund's affairs as at 30 June 2009 and of
its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

BFIRR  ZEVBRREBBEETEMBRELNEEMA T RRETEESN2009F6 0N EBRA LB EZB IEFENR
ﬁﬁﬂliﬁ.ﬁulbi °©

Wong Brothers & Co. RGNS
Certified Public Accountants BEWESETRD
Hong Kong, 20 October 2009 A7 - 2009F10H20H



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bf#rR7 %

2009 2008
Note HKS$ HK$
it AT BT
Current assets SRENEE

Amount due from HKIAAT FEN & I8 3 - 208,689
Receivables EUZIE - 2,500
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M ERIBLIER 5 379,804 198,290
379,804 409,479

Current liabilities EEN&{&
Accruals for awards and scholarships #218 K #8824 K feft & F 6 (350,140) (397,180)
Amount due to HKIAAT FEft & U8 3 (15,851) -
(365,991) (397,180)
Net assets BERE 13,813 12,299
Accumulated funds EEE S 13,813 12,299

Approved by the Trustees on 20 October 2009
FFEAR2009F 10 A20 B #L /&

KONG Chi How, Johnson Doug OXLEY
ILER ERE
Trustee Trustee
ZFEA ZFTA

CHO LUNG Pui%an, Stella

by
Trustee
ZFEA




STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £EW &

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
HrT BIT
Revenue A
Donations from 83K &:
- Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited ("HKIAAT")
HEMBEAHEERAT ("He") - 180,000
- Other parties Hf A+ 1,500 3,000
Interest income F Bz 314 2,869
1,814 185,869
Expenses Bi3x
Bank charges $R1TUE (300) -
Scholarships ##£2& - (168,460)
(300) (168,460)
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year
FERGBRREMRSIELE 1,514 17,409




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUNDS EigE &£

2009 2008
HKS HKS
AT BT
Accumulated funds 2EES
At beginning of financial year R84 & & 4] 12,299 (5,110)
Total comprehensive income % H {5 B8 1,514 17,409
At end of financial year RETBUFE F 4R 13,813 12,299




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS IHE&REx

2009 2008
Note HKS HK$
Hiat AT BT
Cash flows from operating activities S EFHZHEHE
Surplus for the year FZ 24 1,514 17,409
Decrease in receivables FEWFRIBR 2,500 6,000
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from HKIAAT
JRE W 125 & FRIEDRL A/ (45 ) 208,689 (111,535)
Increase in amount due to HKIAAT
FEST e SRIAIE BN 15,851 -
(Decrease)/increase in accruals for awards and scholarships
HIANRE G A ER B R ORA)/AE (47,040) 93,995
Net cash generated by operating activities and net increase in
cash and cash equivalents
SERHEL RS FRERERERRSEBIGNFEE 181,514 5,869
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
RUBFEFNz R RERREIER 198,290 192,421
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year
R BREEFR RS RERRSIER 5 379,804 198,290




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Br##zxfvzT

1. Principal activities TE 7§

Under a trust deed dated 21 June 1999, the HKIAAT Scholarship Trust Fund ( “the Trust Fund” ) was set up for educational
purposes and in particular for the provision of scholarship to persons studying for the examinations held by Hong Kong
Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians Limited ( “HKIAAT" ). The trustees are the president, the immediate past
president and the vice-president of HKIAAT. The Trust Fund is a subsidiary of HKIAAT.

ERVB e HERESERED (MEREL") BRIE1999F6 A21 BT MERARAKIIERE RE - WH /2 EEEH
BatHheERLAR ("He") MEREANALIRHKES - Z2NXTEALBEER  LEERERER - EREcAhe
HKT B -

2. Principal accounting policies TE& R

a. Basis of preparation {RSE %
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Institute. These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Trust Fund’s accounting policies. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

MEBRIMBBEBEMBEREEANRE - EEVHEREERNBEEMELEYHREER - EESHEA RS RMHNES -
S FR B REEAELKAERE

RENABEMBERELENNMBREEREMHENBER ST A - SHLEREREERBERESSHERRFELH
B o ELfhEt RAABERFREREE L &R M A MARERELS - BRER A BEEB LM TR -

b. Early adoption of applicable new/revised HKFRSs 128408 B ET/AE ST B B TEIRE %R
The Institute has issued new/revised HKFRSs up to 30 June 2009 available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Trust Fund. The Trust Fund has assessed that none of these HKFRSs are applicable to the Trust Fund’s
operations.

B E2009%6H30H - A EMMINEE] T E’Ji&%ﬁﬂ%#ﬁ(m/ 8] AR ERESEE RN GFTHREARR o FRESKER
Hg  RRELFBYBREENL NERNEEESNEE -

c. Effects of new/revised HKFRSs that were issued after 30 June 2009 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements
20094F6 A 30 H AR EMFE IR A B B /NETTHNEBM RS LN E
The Institute has issued certain revised HKFRSs after 30 June 2009 and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements, the Trust Fund has assessed that these revised HKFRSs are not applicable to the Trust Fund’s operations.

20096 A30 A AR EMEMARMAR - ARBEM T —LEFT THBEBYHREEN - EAESLBAER - RBELEFT
TOEBUBREENL NEANETESHEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 73 ZxfvzT

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) TE&EHEGE (18)

d. Financial instruments B}1#§ T &
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the statement of financial position when the Trust Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

The Trust Fund's financial assets are classified as receivables and cash and cash equivalents. At each date of the
statement of financial position subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less identified impairment charges (see note 2e).

Financial liabilities include accruals for awards and scholarships and amount due to HKIAAT. All financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

BEEAESNAVBETAARGRN— 1K MBEEEMBRBEERMBIRRARTER - WEEERPFABRIEAR
REFTE - RUERARE - ERENERLT  RYBEEXMBRENAAETMASHRER I GBRUBEERTTE
BEMBERBEITHRZ KA

ERESNMBEED BRUWFE - BERFAREHEE - REVEIRNSESBANKRA - ELEPHEERBERNERA
AHEMEERNRECETRETE (RME2e) -

MBABREEANRESHETERANENHERIA - MBEMBABERORERN T AN ENBEKATE -

e. Impairment of financial assets 8178 & F&ER{E
The Trust Fund recognizes charges for impaired receivables promptly where there is objective evidence that impairment
of a receivable or portfolio of receivables has occurred. Impairment allowances are assessed individually for significant
receivables or collectively for receivable portfolios with similar credit risk characteristics including those individually
assessed balances for which no impairment provision is made on an individual basis.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of an impairment charge decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment charge is reversed
by reducing the receivable impairment allowance account. The amount of any reversal is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

EERERBR T LR EUGIASEKIBAS BER @ ErEe AR EKTIAZFIE - 8 EARRKFIEERE IR AR
BiE A ERRRFRERNERFEES - SR KRERIRBUBER G ER G BRFRGRS  (FERERER
e

HHRZ - REMNSERD  MRDNERAIREBHESREBERRRELENEN - AR ARNRERSEEFHERIKE
EIRECSRBIAZERER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Br#&#zxfvzT

2. Principal accounting policies (continued) TE&EHEE (1)

f. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities §175 & LR 5 B (&% S
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or where the
Trust Fund has transferred its contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or where control is not retained.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

BRMBEERICRSROENZE - FEAESER TRV BEERSRNARENLEE L@ THE N2 HER
EEE - REHETEFER - RIHRRNMEEE

=
5
m
o
2
i

B8 - BIEEBRETT - BIHKDHE - LEHERNP RS -

g. Cash and cash equivalents &M EFIREIER
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions.

e hFERRSEABERITERMRE - FR|ITREMSBEERERTFR -

h. Revenue recognition A RESS
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Trust Fund and when the revenue
can be measured reliably.

Donations are recognized on an accrual basis when receipt thereof is certain.

Interest income from bank savings account is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest method.
WA BB R R AT RE MR AGFEE S - R R Al St SRR AR ©

B EERIR R EEERALR -

RITREF QRN B R HE AR A ERNEERERAR

i. Related parties B5EA L
Parties are considered to be related to the Trust Fund if the Trust Fund has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Trust Fund and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals (being members of key management personnel and/or their close family members) or entities and include
entities which are controlled or under the significant influence of related parties of the Trust Fund where those parties are
individuals.

HEETIIER - HAALEREFREXESARE  BEAESTERKFEREBIZA LR ATEZALTOMBEREER
REZRSHREEEAREN  RZIA - XRERESEZATRAZHRZHSAARNERTE - BEALATERER A
TENEEERABR/HEERZTE) RER  YERAGEEESAMENENALMEHSEEEATENER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&3zxfv5T

3. Amount due (to)/ from HKIAAT FE (1) /i & sRIE
The amount due (to)/ from HKIAAT is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.

FE& (<) /M7 & FORI MR - TEHAR - AR EAMEHEE

r"g

4. Financial instruments by category B # T B 5348
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the date of the statement of financial position are as
follows:

RETEIRRR A Z BT TAKREENT

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Financial assets (A7 & &
Amount due from HKIAAT FEU & 718 - 208,689
Accounts receivable FEUIR R - 2,500
Cash and cash equivalents 384 N ERIE£IE B 379,804 198,290
379,804 409,479
Financial liabilities Bt 75 &{&
Accruals for awards and scholarships #%18 I ## £ 4 e~ & R 350,140 397,180
Amount due to HKIAAT FEfHp & IR 15,851 -
365,991 397,180

The fair value of the Trust Fund'’s financial assets and financial liabilities at the date of the statement of financial position
approximates their carrying amount.

REBEIRAER R ERESNMBEERMBRBENAABAOEFRIKHEE -

5. Cash and cash equivalents IH& & EFIRLIER

2009 2008
HK$ HK$
AT I
Bank balances $R1T41F
- Savings account fEEF O 374,604 192,790
- Current account R~ 0 5,200 5,500

379,804 198,290
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6. Accruals for awards and scholarships 218 R # £ & B FE(T £ F

2009 2008

HKS HKS

AT BT

HKIAAT Scholarships & 225 339,445 386,485
HKIAAT Applied Learning Scholarship & fE 25 184 10,695 10,695
350,140 397,180

The maturity profile of the Trust Fund's financial liabilities as at the date of the statement of financial position, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, is as follows:

RIBAVARBBENTE - EREESHVFEERPBARKRANZHASHAOT

2009 2008

HK$ HK$

AT BT

Between 31 and 90 days 31290H - 5,355
Between 91 and 180 days 91E180H 234,060 168,460
Between 181 and 270 days 181ZF270H 116,080 223,365
350,140 397,180

7. Related party transactions BiEA 1335
During the year, the Trust Fund received no donation (2008: HK$180,000) from HKIAAT.
The amount due to HKIAAT at 30 June 2009 is HK$15,851 (2008: amount due from HKIAAT of HK$208,689).
RARER - FRESRAWEHERIBK (20084 ¢ 180,00087T) °

P2009F6 A30H & EM RS RIEA15,8518 T (20084 : EUIHE FIE208,689/87C)
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8. Financial risk management BA75 [ &I

Financial instruments mainly consist of amount due to/from HKIAAT, cash and cash equivalents and receivables. The Trust
Fund carries as little risks from financial instruments as practicable. The Trust Fund is exposed to various financial risks
which are discussed below:

M TABEEN/ERHETHE ReEXFRR|EE R MEKFTIE - FEESEANTHEN VMEEREM B TANRR © 555
HeAS AT EBIERER -

a. Interest rate risk FJ2= &
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
The Trust Fund’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations is limited to interest receivable on its savings account as at the
date of the statement of financial position. Any fluctuation in the prevailing levels of market interest rates will have impact
on the interest income alone as the Trust Fund has not borrowed any loans during the year. The Trust Fund manages
the interest rate risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest rates in order to limit potential adverse impacts on
interest income.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with other variables held
constant, of the Trust Fund's surplus before tax and equity.

MEEREMETABEHIRNTSMNXESHMEEER - ERESONXLBERERNBEMBRR AREF ODNE
WHE - TETMSNFKFOEMRBRIGNEREEFE  AREEESRAFALBIMAER - ERESTUERHE
SHARBIE N S WENEERETE - FBILEENERR

TRERTEEMABEZERFETEE - SRESHA B REE S L A s A BN R EEHGURIE

2009 2008

HKS HKS

AT AT

Savings account & F O 374,604 192,790

FF=R FFE

% p.a % p.a

Effective interest rate of savings account fA&F 0 2 EEF| R 0.08% 0.50%

Impact of interest rate deviation FI|R &tz § 2

Increase/decrease in interest rate by 1% F|=R & H1/58 1%

- Increase/decrease in surplus before tax % Al Z &R A0/5R 3,746 1,928

- Increase/decrease in accumulated funds 2 E S & M0/ 3,746 1,928
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8. Financial risk management (continued) BA75 AR EIE (18)

b. Credit risk SR
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

The Trust Fund has designed their credit policies with an objective to minimize its exposure to credit risk. Donation income
is mainly from HKIAAT which is its holding company.

The Trust Fund'’s surplus cash has been deposited with a reputable and creditworthy bank which is an authorized
institution under the Deposit Protection Scheme guaranteed by the Hong Kong SAR Government's Exchange Fund.
Management considers there is minimal risk associated with the bank balances.

ERRER R B2 5 5 F T ae e B N H AR -

ERESRFHEAERNEFREEREEHARER - BEENRTERENHE - BNHZERAF] -

ERESHARELE TN —HEA RIFBEBLEANRT  ERARTEEEFRBFINEES BROTFHREEIRA
Mo EEERR  BRTEFAENARL TS -

9. Capital management BEAEIE

The Trust Fund operates by allocating its receipts and therefore is not exposed to any capital deficiency risk. In the unlikely
event of capital needs, HKIAAT will make donations to the Trust Fund to ensure capital adequacy.

ERESNEZEESRANBHEA - Rt THBRTAEATNERR - EHERNEAFKIBERT - HEaHREREEZRER - K
EREATTRIE -



